

NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET

WEDNESDAY, 12 OCTOBER 2016 AT 11.00 AM

COUNCIL CHAMBER - THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Joanne Wildsmith, Democratic Services Tel 9283 4057 Email: joanne.wildsmith@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please notify the contact named above.

Membership

Councillor Donna Jones (Chair)

Councillor Luke Stubbs Councillor Ryan Brent Councillor Jim Fleming Councillor Lee Mason Councillor Rob New Councillor Linda Symes Councillor Steve Wemyss Councillor Neill Young

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are accepted.

AGENDA

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Declarations of Interests
- 3 Solent Combined Authority Governance Review and Scheme (Pages 1 212)

A report by the Chief Executive is attached, the purpose of which is:

1. To provide Cabinet with the detail of responses made during the consultation conducted in relation to the Strategic Governance Review and the draft Scheme, and proposals for a Mayoral Combined Authority

(as described in the Review, and draft Scheme) and invites Cabinet to decide whether the establishment of a combined authority would be likely to improve the exercise of statutory functions in relation to the area of the combined authority.

- Subject to that decision, Cabinet is invited to publish the Scheme and to submit it to the Secretary of State (together with the Review, and consultation response report (which incorporates the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership consultation of businesses, and letters). The Scheme incorporates proposals from amongst those described in the Review and the draft Scheme, amended in response to feedback provided during the Consultation and represents the consolidated proposal for a Solent Combined Authority, covering the local authority areas of Portsmouth City Council, Southampton City Council, and the Isle of Wight Council (the Solent Unitary Authorities), as constituent members. Similar reports and recommendations are being considered by the Cabinets of Southampton City Council (19th October) and Isle of Wight Council (24th October).
- 3. It is for the Secretary of State, before he makes any order establishing a combined authority, to satisfy himself that to do so is likely to improve the exercise of statutory functions in the areas to which the order relates (and the other considerations described in the legal comments within the report). The Secretary of State will carry out a public consultation unless he is satisfied that no further consultation is necessary in the light of the consultation already carried out in connection with the proposals contained in the Scheme.
- 4. Any order establishing the combined authority will also require the consent of the constituent authorities. It is anticipated that the submission of the Scheme to the Secretary of State will lead to a period of discussion about the detail of what is proposed. Following that discussion, if the Secretary of State is minded to make an order, Cabinet will be invited to give consent on behalf of the Council.
- 5. Where a submission to the Secretary of State is approved, the report seeks a delegation to the Leader and Chief Executive to take all actions necessary to make the submission and any further actions that arise.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Cabinet is recommended to:

- 2.1.1 Note that a thorough 8 week consultation exercise was undertaken across the Isle of Wight, Southampton and Portsmouth council areas on the draft Governance Review and the Draft Scheme.
- 2.1.2 Note that the consultation results (see appendix 3) confirmed support for the three authorities working together to achieve devolution from central government through a mayoral combined authority.
- 2.1.3 Publish the Scheme and Review, and submit a request to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to establish a Solent Combined Authority (such a submission will be dependent on the other two Councils also resolving to publish the final Scheme and

review).

2.1.4 Agree that if a decision is made to make a submission to the Secretary of State, that Cabinet approve the Governance Review (appendix 1), revised scheme (appendix 2), and the consultation responses (appendix 3), and include these as part of the submission to the Secretary of State alongside the letters that have been received on this issue (appendix 4). Note that the onward procedure of the Secretary of State is described in the Legal Implications/City Solicitor Comments.

2.1.5 Agree that if a submission to the Secretary of State is made, that the Leader and Chief Executive be given delegated authority to negotiate the final terms of an Order to establish a Solent Mayoral Combined Authority alongside colleagues from the Isle of Wight Council and Southampton City Council.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.

4 October 2016